
 
 

0845 330 8272   www.truefood.coop   committee@truefood.coop 
 
True Food Community Co-operative Ltd, 61 Grove Rd, Emmer Green, Reading, Berkshire, RG4 8LJ, UK 
An Industrial & Provident Society Reg No: IP29874R      VAT No: 874678856 
Reg Office: TFC Box, RISC, 35-39 London St, Reading, RG1 4PS 

 
Minutes of the True Food Co-op Annual General Meeting 2013 
 
Sunday 30th June 
 
Waltham Place Estate 
 
Present: Chris Aldridge, Susan Arstall, Anna Batchelor, Deborah Best, Carole Boudeau, 
Michael Bright, Charlie Dormer, Adrian Foster, Sunil Gandhi, Rebecca Green, Caroline 
Hearst, Annette Horniblow, John Horniblow, Peter King, Beatrice Krehl, Joanna MacDouall, 
Bianca McHale, Ciaran McHale, Kathryn McCann, Vinnie McCann, Paul Minton, Marisa  
Minunno, Hazel Murphy, Dianne Naden, Alessandro Novembre, Gavin Parker, Pam Prior, 
John Prior, Sarah Pugh, Kumari Samarasinghe, Rupert Shute, Robin Smith, Martin Stone, 
Caroline Suter, Chang-yu Tan, Sam Wade, Helen Warren, Rob White, Peter Wilkin, Helen 
Wright 
 
Apologies: Jackie Oversby, Doug Cresswell, Sian Hooley, Neil Hooley, Kate Day, Karen 
Green, Maureen Stride, Ornella Trevisan, Lisa Waite, Richard Cocks, Annick Trepier, 
Caroline Gratrix, Ed Wright, Heather Wright, Jean Hackett, Jan Digby, Stuart Scott, 
Anthony Guy, Diane Guy, Alison Rimmer, Julia Wright, Jill Ramsden, Karen Sternhell, Alan 
Clark, Ann Anley, Ruth Burke, Christine Wilson, Jessica Hottinger, Karen Rumbol, Elizabeth 
Munday, Alan Pennington, Sam Wade, Kay Oakley, Anne Pulsford, Nicola Tipler, Clive 
Tipler, Chris Sinclair, Pei Pei Phoon, Conrad Bullows Weeks, Mary Tindall, Gisela Hewat, 
Elanor Stanley, Pamela Rees, Helga Bogisch-Francis, Cathy Hughes, Helen Rowe, Sabrina 
Piergrossi, Janet Daabeck, Jens Daabeck, Lindsey Brown, Rachel Chilton, Christine Bauer, 
Alastair Halliday, Laura Daniells, Monica Ashton, Chandni Nigam, Jerry Lunn, Helen Lunn, 
Beth Scott, Paul Harper, Judith Petersen, John Best   
 
 
1. The minutes of the 2012 AGM were accepted as an accurate record of the meeting 
(proposed Rupert Shute, seconded Gavin Parker, vote unanimous.) 
 
2.  Survey 
Kathryn McCann presented the results of the survey carried out in 2012 with shoppers, 
residents around each venue, trade customers and suppliers. 622 people were surveyed in 
total. Some findings have already fed into decisions, for example the survey revealed that 
Friday evening was not a popular time to shop and we have now combined the Friday 
market with the Saturday. The shop is opening an hour earlier in response to survey 
results. The idea of having a bakery was popular. 
 
Kathryn made a number of recommendations for improvements based on the survey. 
Improve the presentation of fresh produce, venue specific marketing, expand chilled 
goods, sell milk at markets, earlier opening hours at markets. In order to put any of these 
proposals into action we need more members to get actively involved in helping. 
 
Comments from the floor –  
Annette Horniblow said that if we were going to take milk to markets we would need a 
bigger fridge which might have practical and safely implications in handling. Chris Aldridge 
(markets manager) responded that there are plans in hand to take more chilled goods to 
market using the chilled trailer. 
Michael Bright said that to improve the fresh produce display at markets we could consider 
alternative stackable containers. 



 
 

0845 330 8272   www.truefood.coop   committee@truefood.coop 
 
True Food Community Co-operative Ltd, 61 Grove Rd, Emmer Green, Reading, Berkshire, RG4 8LJ, UK 
An Industrial & Provident Society Reg No: IP29874R      VAT No: 874678856 
Reg Office: TFC Box, RISC, 35-39 London St, Reading, RG1 4PS 

Charlie Dormer asked if there was a danger of milk being wasted if we took it to markets. 
Chris Aldridge said it would have to be built up slowly to ensure this didn’t happen. 
Anna Batchelor commented that we would have to think about hygiene if using new 
containers to display fruit and vegetables – they would have to be washable. She also 
cautioned that people may say in surveys what they think you want to hear so results 
should be treated with care. 
Chris Aldridge said that there were villages around Emmer Green that we should try and 
target with advertising. 
 
3. Accounts 
Kumari Samarasinghe distributed copies of the 2012 accounts and a summary of projected 
figures for 2013 (see appendix A). In 2012 we made a profit of £12,364 (a loss of £15,000 
without grants). Depreciation on assets was £8,151. Rupert Shute explained that the figure 
for directors’ remuneration in the accounts is because some committee members are paid 
staff members and this has to be recorded – it does not mean anyone is paid for committee 
work.  
The projected figures for 2013 show a forecast loss of £25,000 (this includes the final part 
of the local food grant) 
 
The vote on accepting the accounts came later in the meeting following the chair’s report. 
 
4. Chair’s Report  
(Copies of the slides are available on the members area of the True Food Website) 
The local food project grant ends this year. We have been successful in increasing sales but 
not at keeping overheads down. Rupert asked Helen Warren, Business Manager to present 
staff objectives. Helen presented the team objectives in the overall context of True Food’s 
mission to provide organic food and ecological products at affordable prices and the team 
mission to run the best shop and markets we can with the resources we have. The key 
objective is to make a profit without grants by the end of the year. To do this we need to 
increase takings, reduce costs and increase the number of helper hours. Helen is working 
with individual staff members to set specific objectives and targets. She ended with a 
request for members to “talk to us, help us” 
 
Comments from the floor -  
Di Naden thanked Helen for her presentation that was to the point but not too dense. 
Sunil Gandhi asked what is being done to turn customers into member. Helen replied that 
this is mostly done by the person on the till talking to people and pointing out the benefits 
of vouchers. 
Anna Batchelor thanked Helen for her presentation and asked what has been achieved over 
the last six months. Di Naden commented that the staff had kept their sanity. Helen 
replied that keeping trading and continuing to grow sales during difficult times had been a 
major achievement. Regular one to one meetings with staff have been set up, people have 
been able to take leave and all staff are now working manageable hours. There is now only 
one vehicle and one member of staff going to markets and we have brightened up the 
shop. 
Anna asked if the shop will be opening again on a Tuesday. Helen replied that this was the 
aim when it is possible. 
Caroline asked why we want to manage without grants as she feels it is difficult to 
compete in the current markets without outside help. Rupert replied that grants are not 
normally available for running existing operations, they tend to be for new projects.      
Kathryn McCann asked if we had considered looking for unemployed people to work as 
helpers and gain valuable work experience. Helen replied that it is something she has 



 
 

0845 330 8272   www.truefood.coop   committee@truefood.coop 
 
True Food Community Co-operative Ltd, 61 Grove Rd, Emmer Green, Reading, Berkshire, RG4 8LJ, UK 
An Industrial & Provident Society Reg No: IP29874R      VAT No: 874678856 
Reg Office: TFC Box, RISC, 35-39 London St, Reading, RG1 4PS 

considered but it needs the time to manage properly so that people gain some worthwhile 
benefit. 
Chris Aldridge commented that targeting community groups is a successful strategy that 
had worked well around Newtown market. He asked people to take flyers to any group or 
organisations they are involved with e.g. schools. 
Anna Batchelor asked if staffing levels will be reviewed. Helen replied that they would 
have to be if we weren’t successful in making a profit at current levels. 
 
5. Audit exemption 
Motion 1 The Treasurer proposes that we allow the Co-operative to apply the audit 
exemption as per the revised form AR30 for Annual Return of a Society registered under 
the Industrial and Provident Societies Act 1965. Note that we need to supply an 
Accountants report because our turnover exceeds £90,000 but does not exceed £5,600,000 
and our total assets are below £2,800,000. 
 
The motion was proposed by Rupert Shute and seconded by Rebecca Green it was accepted 
unanimously. 
 
6. Accepting 2012 accounts 
 Motion 2 The 2012 accounts are accepted. 
 
Motion proposed by Rupert Shute, seconded by Rebecca Green, accepted unanimously. 
 
 
7. Application of profits 
 
Comments from floor -  
John Prior asked why in the summary of 2013 discounts had gone up but not turnover. 
Kumari said that partly turnover had gone down because of closing Tuesday and 
amalgamating Earley markets. 
Hazel Murphy asked what the implication of making a loss was. Rupert said that maybe we 
could use loan stock but we needed to make some decisions about what to do. 
Gavin Parker asked how accurate the premises costs where? Rupert replied that all figures 
are estimates so not necessarily accurate. 
Anna Batchelor said that we need some definite actions with figures. Helen Warren replied 
that she does have outline figures to go with targets. Rupert said that if we don’t see 
marked progress will have to look at reducing staff. Need to look at what is wrong and why 
we are not making a profit. Helen said we need to look at what is expensive to run – 
markets and veg. (She stressed that not planning to stop doing either of these). Hazel 
asked what are the profitable areas? Helen replied things that are easy to sell and don’t 
need much handling. 
Michael Bright asked where loan stock fits in. Rupert replied that little has been used yet. 
Work is in progress on shop storage and the chiller truck has been purchased and is having 
work done on it to make it usable. 
Caroline Hearst pointed out that we are competing against the supermarkets but don’t 
want to behave like them. We are not necessarily doing anything ‘wrong’. Rupert said that 
he first stood for committee when markets where under threat because he wanted them to 
continue but they are very resource intensive. 
Kumari said that we need more commitment from a stable volunteer workforce, we can 
encourage family and friends to get involved. 
Carole Boudeau asked if people could convert their loan stock to a donation. Rupert 
suggested it would be more straightforward if it was paid back, people could then make a 
separate donation if they wish. 



 
 

0845 330 8272   www.truefood.coop   committee@truefood.coop 
 
True Food Community Co-operative Ltd, 61 Grove Rd, Emmer Green, Reading, Berkshire, RG4 8LJ, UK 
An Industrial & Provident Society Reg No: IP29874R      VAT No: 874678856 
Reg Office: TFC Box, RISC, 35-39 London St, Reading, RG1 4PS 

Annette Horniblow asked if loan stock has been allocated to bakery and noted that it 
hasn’t opened yet. Rupert replied that the bakery needs True Food to be stable before it 
opens. We may want to keep True Food going with loan stock but the bakery as a 
progressive venture may be a better us of money, these are all decisions we will have to 
make. 
Chang-yu Tan asked if helper hours had gone down since last year. Helen Wright replied 
that they had although is very variable month to month. Chang-yu said we need to find out 
why people stop or do less. Helen Warren replied that this is in hand. 
Anna Batchelor said there are questions not answered and we need a list of actions and 
deliverables with figures. Gavin Parker suggested we need to develop an action plan with 
dates. Helen Warren accepted the action to produce a draft action plan in a month. 
Kathryn McCann said we should try and negotiate rents with the market premise’s owners. 
Gavin pointed out that they are mostly charities who are struggling themselves. 
Hazel Murphy said that RISC give volunteers different discounts on different products 
depending on the profit made and this could be considered by True Food. 
 
Motion 3 Profits made in 2012 should be used to repay rent to Reading Borough Council 
and to offset forecast losses in 2013. 
 
Motion proposed by Rupert Shute, seconded by Helen Warren, carried with 1 abstention. 
 
7. Governance of True Food 
Rupert Shute introduced this discussion. Members elect the committee who recruit staff. 
Staff run the business and members hold the committee to account. There is a potential 
conflict of interest although Rupert stressed that this is no reflection on anyone currently 
involved it is just to raise the issue for discussion. A number of committee members have 
been appointed as staff. There is nothing in our constitution against this but in charities it 
is forbidden. Do members think this is an issue? 
 
Ciaran McHale said he doesn’t think it is a problem and if members are concerned that 
staff are overwhelming the committee then more non-staff members should join the 
committee. 
Martin Stone says we need to make sure there are enough members on the committee to 
meet the requirements of our constitution. Rupert said that in theory over the last year 
staff could have held a meeting and it would have been a quorate committee meeting. 
Hazel Murphy felt there was potentially a problem for staff members who are not on the 
committee. 
John Prior suggested we could have a certain number of places on the committee reserved 
for staff members like school governing boards do. Rupert said this could be something to 
consider. Any changes we make like this would mean a change to the constitution. 
Gavin Parker stressed that committee should be making decisions on policy and staff 
should be advising them. 
Rob White asked how conflicts of interest were currently handled. Rupert gave a number 
of examples where different decision making routes had been used. With staff pay we have 
changed things so that staff make a proposal to the committee and it then goes to the AGM 
for ratification. Moving the Friday market to Saturday was proposed by staff and ratified by 
committee. Closing the shop on Tuesday was a staff decision. Helen Wright added that 
were there was a clear conflict of interest when members of committee where applying for 
staff jobs those committee members were not involved in the discussions and we brought 
independent people into the interview process.  
The proposal to hold a members meeting about governance was carried with 6 abstentions. 
 
 



 
 

0845 330 8272   www.truefood.coop   committee@truefood.coop 
 
True Food Community Co-operative Ltd, 61 Grove Rd, Emmer Green, Reading, Berkshire, RG4 8LJ, UK 
An Industrial & Provident Society Reg No: IP29874R      VAT No: 874678856 
Reg Office: TFC Box, RISC, 35-39 London St, Reading, RG1 4PS 

 
8. Election of committee  
Rupert thanked Helen Warren, Helen Wright and Rebecca Green who are not standing for 
re-election. The following members were elected to serve on the management committee 
for the next year. 
 
Name Proposed by Seconded by Voting 
Chris Aldridge Rupert Shute Di Naden  All for 
Jerry Lunn Helen Warren Rupert Shute 8 abstentions 
Kumari Samarasinghe Helen Warren Michael Bright All for 
Freya Dean Rupert Shute Helen Warren 8 abstentions 
Gavin Parker Rupert Shute Martin Stone 4 abstentions 
Rupert Shute Chris Aldridge Di Naden 3 abstentions 
  
 
9. Update on Bakery 
Peter King and Robin Smith have been working closely with the committee on the bakery 
project.  
 
Peter reported that we have £9,495 grant still available for revenue costs. £10,000 of 
equipment has now been purchased before the deadline for using the grant passed. The 
start date has been delayed partly because of delays on the lease with Ways and Means. 
The space at Ways & Means has been cleared and we now have a design for conversion. 
 
Robin reported that we had some design advice for free and have now paid for a full 
design. This has been approved by Tom Baker and other experienced bakers. The lease is 
being delayed because Ways & Means landlord wants to rewire the building including 
meeting the bakery needs.  
 
Rupert reported that the legal structure will be the bakery is a separate legal entity wholly 
owned by True Food. This gives both organisations a ‘firewall’ against litigation against one 
affecting the other and should cover concerns raised at the last members meeting. We are 
still awaiting advice on whether the bakery should be a community interest company.  
 
Chris Aldridge asked if we had electrical plans. Robin replied that we did for the bakery we 
are waiting for Ways & Means to clarify theirs. It is a few weeks to do the electrical work 
once clarified and we still hope to open the bakery by the end of the year. 
 
Meeting closed at 12.40pm 


